
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, June 25, 2012 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

                            City of South Haven 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
4. Approval of Minutes – April 23, 2012 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
NEW BUSINESS – Dimentional Variance Request 
 
6.  Don and Kathy Raklovits, 77 Clinton Street, request a variance from Article IV, Section 

402 in order to attach a garage to the residence, resulting in nonconformance to the 
rear (north) setback requirements. The setback proposed will be three (3) feet from the 
north lot line. The ordinance requires attached garages to be located no less than 25 
feet from the rear lot line in the R1-A zone. The applicant is also requesting relief from 
the lot coverage maximum of 40 percent. The addition will bring the lot coverage to 41 
percent. The parcel number for the subject property is 80-53-184-012-00. 

 
7.    Election of Officers 2012-2013 
 
8.   Adjourn 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 

South Haven City Hall is barrier free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to 
individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 1 of 25



Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, April 23, 2012 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

                            City of South Haven 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order by Ingersoll at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present: Apotheker, Henry, Manley, Paull, Wheeler, Wittkop, Ingersoll 
Absent: None 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Wittkop, second by Apotheker to approve the April 23, 2012 meeting agenda as 
presented.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – February 27, 2012 
 

Motion by Wittkop, second by Manley to approve the February 27, 2012 regular Meeting 
Minutes as written.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

None at this time. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Zachary Bossenbroek, representing Thayer Properties LLC, requests variances for 
two (2) properties located at 42 Lakeshore Drive. The properties are individually 
identified as 42 Lakeshore Drive North and 42 Lakeshore Drive South.   

 

6a. 42 Lakeshore Drive North – A request to either 1.) receive a variance for a front 
yard setback to permit a second story balcony that would encroach into the required 
front yard or, 2.) receive a front yard setback variance to construct a deck with a 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 2 of 25



April 23, 2012  
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 

2

three (3) to four (4) foot elevation within the required front yard. The second option 
would also require a variance to allow no off street parking spaces. 

 

6b.  42 Lakeshore Drive South – A request to either 1.) receive a variance for a front 
yard setback to permit a second story balcony that would encroach into the required 
front yard or, 2.) receive a front yard setback variance to construct a deck with a 
three (3) to four (4) foot elevation within the required front yard. The second option 
would also require a variance to allow no off street parking spaces. 

 

 Ingersoll invited the applicant’s representative to explain the requests.  

 Zach Bossenbroek: representing Thayer Properties stated that there are two 
properties and the request is the same for both properties. The property owner is 
presently in a quiet title action to seek fee title ownership for the right-of-way which 
for forty years has been used by the property owners for their own use. City Council, 
according to Bossenbroek, asked Thayer Properties to go before the Zoning Board 
of Appeals to help resolve this issue of the six to nine feet of right-of-way up to where 
the wall had stood.  

 There were two (2) alternative variances presented in the application. Ingersoll 
explained that the Zoning Board is not in the business of picking which alternative to 
consider, “So for the purposes of the variances tonight, pick one”. Bossenbroek said 
the applicant’s preference is to have the second story deck and to be able to provide 
the off-street parking underneath. Bossenbroek noted that the city’s attorney told the 
applicant to submit their request with alternatives. Ingersoll said, “We do not want the 
liability, so we do ask that you pick one and the board will go from there”.  

Ingersoll said if you get the three (3) feet up to the property line and you want 
another nine (9) feet beyond that it means the deck would go out twelve (12) feet 
from the front of the building. Bossenbroek stated that what he calls “the disputed 
area” does not go evenly up to nine (9) feet; however, that is subject to City Council’s 
decision.  

Henry asked Bossenbroek to refer to the large map displayed and stated that he is a 
bit confused as to what parcel is being talked about. Bossenbroek noted the large 
map is dated while the survey maps in the packet might be clearer. Ingersoll asked if 
the intent was to sell these individually. Bossenbroek said that has not been decided 
yet but it is probable that they would sell them individually. Ingersoll asked the width 
of the lots, which Bossenbroek said are in excess of thirty-three feet.  

Paull said he wants to be clear that the Zoning Board is going to be discussing, by 
Bossenbroek’s request, the higher level deck to the lot line. Bossenbroek restated 
that, “Just for the record, I did provide the alternative request because I was told to 
by the City Attorney”.  

Wittkop asked if the applicant has any building plans. Bossenbroek said the plan is, 
“We are trying to add a deck that will add value to the property. Ideally you put the 
deck on the front like you see in Key West and other coastal communities”. 
Bossenbroek explained that this is to allow the owners to sit on their deck and look 
out at the Lake like their neighbors do; Bossenbroek wants to maximize the use of 
the property by bringing the deck out to the property line.  

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 3 of 25



Anderson noted that everything the applicant provided is in your packet. After a 
question from the board, Anderson agreed that the second-story deck is the best 
option due to providing the off-street parking. Anderson noted that she did have calls 
and emails from some neighbors regarding how this will affect their view. Anderson 
noted that the Zoning Board of Appeals cannot grant variances that are in the right-
of-way; the Zoning Ordinance states that the applicant may only ask for variances on 
land that is under his control.  

Regarding the lot split, Anderson noted that was a legal land division, which was 
done last year, and the parcels under discussion are zoning compliant lots.  

Ingersoll opened the public hearing and asked if there was anyone who wished to 
speak to this matter. 

Karen Cagen; 82 Esplanade noted that it was her property for over forty years. 
Cagen explained that there was a trade between Mr. Hunter and Cagen. Cagen said 
she did not know that Mr. Hunter’s granddaughter told a friend and it got back to 
Cagen that the swap was done because they intended all along to do a split and 
build two houses on the subject property. Cagen explained that makes it possible for 
the applicant to build up to six feet from her lot line; it will directly affect her by having 
the building so close and by going up high enough to block the view from the upstairs 
octagonal bedroom. Cagen noted that this proposed project will also cause an 
occlusion of view for most of the neighbors in that area.  

Ingersoll asked if most of the houses in the area are two-story. Cagen said Mr. 
Hunter’s house was a story and a half, another neighbors is one story with an attic, 
and yet another is two-story. Cagen said her cottage is from 1890, there are a lot of 
charming homes and as variances are granted to make things higher she wonders 
where it is going to stop. The people of South Haven have a beautiful little seaside 
town.  

Wendy Schilcariof, 92 Esplanade stated that she purchased her property in, she 
believes, 1982, and she was thrilled. Schilcariof stated that she sees less and less of 
the lake. While Schilcariof understands that progress needs to take place and people 
sell to make money and buy to make money. However, Schilcariof noted, a trend is 
happening where variances keep being granted and she wonders when or if it is 
going to stop. Schilcariof understands somebody being in a house or owning 
property for several years and wanting to add on as their family grows. Schilcariof 
said people buy a property and it appears the property was bought it with the 
intention of building something that would need variances. Some of these houses go 
up and within three months they are for sale. Schilcariof asked, “Why are they 
building these houses if they don’t want to enjoy them?” 

Ingersoll asked if in that area, there are a lot of homes that are built out to the 
property line. Schilcariof said the whole north beach at one time had white cement 
block fences to the property line. Slowly, styles changed, people changed and the 
block walls have gradually been eliminated. Schilcariof noted that the stone fence 
was gone when she bought her property. Barb Adler still has a semi-one. Schilcariof 
noted that the owner of the green house was not allowed to extend his balconies; at 
least that is what Schilcariof was told by the owner.  

Ingersoll asked Schilcariof if the variance would affect her property. Schilcariof 
responded, “That is not the point; the board is setting a trend.”  

Motion by Manley, second by Wheeler to close the public hearing.  

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 4 of 25



April 23, 2012  
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 

4

All in favor. Motion carried. 

Paull said the only reason for this request is that it would enhance the value of the 
property. Paull said the enhancement and loss of the value of the property is not 
something the Zoning Board of Appeals should consider. 

Manley asked Anderson if he understands correctly that this property was one lot 
that was split into two, and then asked, “Does that affect these variances? This 
seems self-created.”  

Anderson noted the lot splits were legal lot splits and those lots could be built on 
without variances. Manley asked, if it is possible, then, to build two legal structures 
without variances, and the split was requested by the applicant, “Is this a self-created 
problem?” Anderson said, “I cannot say that; that is a decision the board would have 
to decide.” Anderson explained that even if there was one lot and one house, the 
applicants might still decide to ask for a variance to bring the house forward and 
have the view.  

Manley asked if it would be possible to build on this property without being granted a 
variance. Anderson said the lots do narrow at the back but are sufficiently wide at the 
front for a residence. Ingersoll said he is not used to granting something like this 
without seeing a house on the property. Anderson reminded the board that the 
balcony will be covered so it will be considered part of the house. Anderson said they 
are essentially asking to build a house in the front lot line and asked Bossenbroek for 
confirmation as to whether the balcony would be covered. Bossenbroek concurred 
that at least part of the balcony would have a roof over it. Anderson said it would be 
considered a part of the house because it would not be open to the sky. So the 
request, Anderson explained, is to make the wall of the house go to the lot line. 
Wittkop asked if that means the steps would go into the right-of-way if the house 
were built to the lot line. Bossenbroek said to remember that the concrete wall was 
out to the right-of-way so we are not asking for anything that was not historically 
there.  

Ingersoll asked how that historical wall lines up with the neighbor’s properties. 
Bossenbroek showed on the historic aerial that the wall that was on the subject 
properties lines corresponding with the remaining walls. Wittkop stated, “If you tear it 
down it is no longer there.” Manley said that is how the Zoning Ordinance says it; 
once it is removed it is no longer there to be considered. Ingersoll said this area has 
a lot of unusual things, so this would not be unusual in that area. Apotheker said 
when he drove down there he noted houses that are beyond the lot line.  

Ingersoll asked Wheeler if he had any comment. Wheeler said he is not comfortable 
with all of this so he is still listening.  

Ingersoll asked Bossenbroek if he has anything else to add to the conversation. 
Bossenbroek said the exceptional circumstance is that we are trying to maintain a 
view like what the neighbors have. We do not want to be set back so we have a 
bowling alley view. Paull said the problem with that argument is that you are telling 
the board that we need to depend on your argument with the City of South Haven to 
decide if the lot line will move or not. Paull said he does not like to make decisions 
based on “what if” this and “what if” that. Paull said the request is to build to the limits 
of the front lot line and my feeling is “No.” 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 5 of 25



Ingersoll asked if it is true that the applicant does not care whether the Zoning Board 
grants this or not because you are just exhausting all your avenues before going 
back to the City Council. Bossenbroek said he thinks it does matter; he likes to avoid 
litigation, as does his client. Bossenbroek pointed out that this deck is all of twelve 
feet, if not more, there are houses that encroach at least eight feet and noted a deck 
that encroaches. Bossenbroek stated that this is not a right that other people in the 
neighborhood do not possess therefore Bossenbroek thinks it is a fair request. 

Henry stated that had the property not been split, would there be sufficient flexibility 
in the square footage of the lot to accomplish what needed to be accomplished 
without requesting a variance.  Bossenbroek responded, “As Ms. Anderson rightly 
said, even with a bigger lot, we would still want to have our house set forward 
instead of to the property line.”  

Henry asked if the board came up with the decision to be in conformance with the 
standards and refused the variance, how many years going forward, until all the 
other properties will be torn down and in line with the appropriate standards. Several 
members of the board agreed it would probably not be on their watch. 

Manley stated that he has concerns; 1.) The proposal appears to be for financial 
gain; in fact the applicant has stated so. Manley said he understands the desire to 
enhance the property, no matter who owns it. 2.) Can houses be built on these 
properties that are in compliance? Yes, they can. Manley asked if the existing 
houses are torn down in the future as this one was, what direction does the board  
want to go, toward compliance in the future or allow what happened before the 
ordinance was even developed. Manley assumes the ordinance is there for a 
purpose however agrees that the area under discussion is a special area and 
neighborhood. Manley reminded that the charter of the Zoning Board of Appeals is, 
at least in most cases, to defend the ordinance and commented, “When we don’t we 
see the bitter fruits of some of that.” Manley said the future trend needs to be 
seriously considered by the board. There is no one that defends the ordinances other 
than this board; we are the judicial body of the City of South Haven. Our decisions 
are not able to be appealed except to the Circuit Court. Manley concluded, “Just 
some thoughts, gentlemen.”  

Apotheker said in my experience in the building business and putting additions in, 
clients want to bring an addition in to the property line as close as possible. 
Apotheker noted that while the front set back may be twelve feet, the two neighbors 
on each side are considered, and the difference between the two neighbors setbacks 
are averaged to determine the setback of the new house or addition. Ingersoll said 
that is correct. Manley said no one has presented the neighbors set backs to this 
board. 

Ingersoll said he needs to present the other side. There are various houses there 
that have parts of their structure up to and over the property line. Ingersoll noted that 
when you look at that, the precedent has already been set in that area. There are 
non-conformances. This is what the board went through when looking at Oak Court. 
There were a number of structures up to the property line. That should be a 
consideration, especially here; this is a unique area. Ingersoll said this is even more 
unique than North Shore. Ingersoll concluded, “That is the other side we might want 
to look at. We don’t want to put this property at a disadvantage to other properties in 
the area.” 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 6 of 25



April 23, 2012  
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 

6

Wheeler asked if all the members of the board agree that this is not self-created. 
Wittkop said it is definitely self-created. Manley said that is the question he was 
asking. Manley went on to say, “There is no self-creation in the depth; it may be true 
that if they had not split the lot and were rebuilding, they probably would still want to 
come out to the property line or beyond. The applicant alluded to that. The self-
created part is that they want to build something that is not in compliance with the 
ordinance even though they can build something that would be in compliance.”  

Ingersoll said there is a slippery slope if you follow that line of thought, too. If 
someone just builds with the Zoning Ordinance and later wants to put a balcony out 
because fifteen of their neighbors have it. Wittkop noted that as presented it is not a 
balcony; it is part of the house. 

Henry asked if there were not a roof on it, then would the structure be in 
conformance. Anderson said remember Oak Court, the balconies were going to 
come out to the lot line; the applicants still had to come in for a variance. Anderson 
said if anything comes out to the lot line it requires a variance. Ingersoll clarified that 
without the roof it is a balcony, with the roof, the house would be out to the zero lot 
line.  

Manley pointed out the standard thought on the view; “It is the sad truth that no one 
owns the view. You may have a view, but unfortunately if someone builds to the right 
or left or in front of your view, they have every legal right to do so.”  

Ingersoll said right now regardless of where the house is built or the deck or anything 
there will be almost a panoramic 180 degree view. The discussion is about two 
houses and two balconies or “additions” to the house. If the board were to approve 
this, it would be required that the house proper would be off the lot line and only the 
part of the house that pertains to the balcony and roof would extend to the lot line. 
Paull said they have to have it open under the balcony to provide the parking 
underneath. Henry has seen houses built like this in the south and they are 
handsome structures. 

Paull said it is true that this area is very unique. The setbacks from house to house 
are each different, unique and special. Probably the zoning should be changed and 
an overlying zone of some type should be placed on this area. However, at this point, 
such an overlay does not exist. The place is identified as a particular zone with 
certain setbacks at front, rear and side. If the board does not defend that everyone 
that tears down a house and rebuilds will want to do the same until it is no longer 
unique. Paull said, “This is speculation. They are not talking about ‘this is a wonderful 
area and I want to build my home here and live here in my retirement.’ These are 
spec houses. Let’s hold them to the zoning ordinance.” 

Henry said he personally does not care if they are building for spec houses. That 
does not bother him at all. Wittkop said we do have a structure (the Zoning 
Ordinance) and if the board starts passing variances we lose that structure. 

Motion by Paull that the request be denied on both properties for the following 
reasons as provided in zoning ordinance section 2205: 1.) Does not conform to, and 
will impair the intent of, the zoning ordinance; 2.) Is driven by financial gain, and 3.) 
The properties as they exist could be developed as single-family residences without 
undue hardship.  

Second by Wittkop. 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 7 of 25



 

 7

A roll call vote was taken with a yes vote denying the request.  

Yes: Manley, Paull, Wheeler, Wittkop 

No: Henry, Apotheker, Ingersoll 

Motion carried.  

 

8.  Change of Meeting Date – May Meeting 
Ingersoll stated that if there is a May meeting it will be May 21st.  

 
9.   Adjourn 
 

Motion by Paull, second by Henry to adjourn at 7:55 p.m.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 
 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 8 of 25



Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6 

Raklovits Variance Request 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 

Background Information:  
 
Don and Kathy Raklovits, 77 Clinton Street, request a variance from Article IV, Section 402 in 
order to attach a garage to the residence, resulting in nonconformance to the rear (north) 
setback requirements. The setback proposed will be three (3) feet from the north lot line. The 
ordinance requires attached garages to be located no less than 25 feet from the rear lot line in 
the R1-A zone. The applicant is also requesting relief from the lot coverage maximum of 40 
percent. The addition will bring the lot coverage to 41 percent. The parcel number for the 
subject property is 80-53-184-012-00. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends approving the variances for rear setback as presented. The applicant has 
demonstrated reasonable evidence to support the requirements of unnecessary burden and 
exceptional conditions relating to his wife’s physical limitations. The following condition is 
included in this recommendation:  
 

1. Reduce the depth of the proposed garage from 30 feet to 28 feet to eliminate the need 
for a fire suppression wall and to allow enough space between the applicant’s building 
and the neighbor to permit maintenance of buildings without trespass. 

 
If the applicant agrees to reduce the building size, the lot coverage variance will not be 
necessary. If the applicant does not agree, any approval from the ZBA will be contingent on 
review and approval of the city fire marshal. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Completed Application w/ Narrative 
Photos of property 
Aerial Photo of the neighborhood 
Staff Findings of Fact 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 9 of 25



ZONING VARIANCE REQUEST
 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT
 

539 PHOENIX STREET, SOUTH HAVEN, MICHIGAN 49090
 
FOR INFORMATION CALL 269-637-0760
 

NOTE: Incomplete applications will not be processed. A fee of $300 will be required at
 
the time the application is submitted.
 

Name: _b_o_~__K--.:....A.--,--k_L_O_\(_\_·\...;......~_.	 _ Date:~ 
Address: _'-,--l_.......;C;;",...-L_\_\u_·_T_u_N__-S_\	 _ Phone: ~<o'\ .330-~y'qO
 

Address of	 . Present Zoninge IA-
Property in Question: ] 1 c... \,. \N\ ~t-l ST	 of Property: 

Name of Property Owner(s): 1)~~ e:y ~~:\~\~ «.1\¥-lO\l ~'T .1 

Present Zoning of Neighboring Properties to the: 

North k J f+ South tZ I A- East K I -A- West t) / J4

Which Sections of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance are you requesting a variance from?
 
Please indicate Section and Paragraph numbers. (City staff will help determine which
 
variance(s) are required).
 

Section(s): 'to;) - =-5 .. /lhf~JL ~tLtd .<Jg:;i.btL e-L-
Under Article XXII, Section 2205 of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance, the Zoning Board of
 
Appeals may not grant a variance from the regulations within the Ordinance unless certain
 
conditions exist. No variance in the provisions of this Ordinance shall be authorized unless the
 
Board finds, from reasonable evidence, that all of the following standards have been met:
 

1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding
 

neighborhood. ~ c ""'~ "". eke..-\ ~<Y'n~"'-\: .... \. 1...... 0... k ':<c:....:. -t u '1~ a..,;t\ C>--':-\...Q...c...
 
00.«0- ~ ~'I.\ ';'ZL ~ <'-~'.:'~6 '"'\-,'-- \k~s,:\"-'<\,\ S;<lL $-\0.;« o.~.(L
 
'{"e.~'~'\A.A --\-\~ €--\'~e... \-.c~c... ~ -\c ~<:-(lL ~ \r.-o'"-....e \~~~ <.t..['-'-.Ic....... -\:
 

\~\\\t... \~~ r.... w-.t;,.""...... ~"'''-~ ....... .J~c... \r-.c"",,(.. <:.. ~ ~c.:.H .\;,lC!.. \\..~~ s\,,-.;v.-\A \....<:oJ{. t_
 

2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. \(0)'' -\~.;)lL eJfe..:...-\.(u ( ~i!..\5""" \x.rj,
-X=1 \N'~\.\ T'oc-\-' J::.\ ~,\.\ D,c:.c:t\j 'y..../j(u ... ~~~ ~~ .. ~r'~, 

c>...",-,~\,\~ &I..>...«'-'~""t.,.;x \('c..~~"'-"o.;.( 't-~"C:.., ,""'-~ ~"' .....---\ ~~-\~oJ&. \-..C""'-L 

c.\."'~} ~<:::>\ ~ ~\ \ ........'\.::. ~ ~-i'-('r'-\" b~< \~\ ~ 0--'\~-€... .........e..'lJ\... ~ .. t" k",,,,CL r....-t -t\'\Q
 
~ (" t.~V'--\ -\ ,vv-..e.. . 

3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in
 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other
 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical
 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness,
 
shallowness, shap~ or topographx. of the property involved, or to the intended use of the _*"
 
propert~. S:e Section ~204(~). \ 'N... ~'~~'~J ua.. '0t.n~ 't-.o-~ ~cw (s-> ~ t). N\:) w", e.

,~ 'r-- c. ..... !.!. "'... '- ~ wL.-_",-" t\-- _0_ (t~~ ~ \-, ~. (: '" o,,,\\.,,,,,*,aC tJ,.:.0- v.. C"_ 'f\ L('~>h-\: ~
 
~D'"	 ~.(-\o 'f'\"~ 't.5*c..- ,..... \'''''"'' - \oN Q...•.~T"'-c ...{. \~ 'n Cl ,,('c......l .r-"-~J ~.-\\.e. 
Rev. 2/04 ~<'';''\~~-\J (51""\.) \~<;.vt..,}. 3' ~e...\~c.........~s -\-~ ' €.,\)e.", ~\.A,.'-.\SLOL'l.. \-t 

C-o- < 6(;. .cc.cs06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 10 of 25



4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right 
similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in the vicinity. The 
possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a 

v~riance. We- o.- .. ~. -\ ....\.\ J..;,,,,,-:- ,e'>;&IZ. ......~~ o..~~ X.~~X- Lz.. Y--..~L~.\SC(>l:. 

.Q,,-( ~:> "'nG.."'&'-L"-'~~(l. ~+e.. -t~~v..",~\:, ... t-I e..~~.....\.~ \ ...... ",.hV'-'\::eV'" 

5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said
 
property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature as to make
 
reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such conditions or situation.
 

-\\'-1.., c:..\) ......... \,,-.::-*I..I:)Y' ~ ~'" "-'...l·:'~L-\i ~c.",-~\.,-~_~ c. ..... ~,,~ ",c~-\v...(.L 
~ --\\-.;, "'" < ~ ~.(,. ~~,.-~~ \r-" ...."- e- ~<. '" L..-~, 2>~ e.. ,,'t-u.. ' -I., ~ ..... 

6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said
 
property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the prop~rty
 

owner. In other ~ords, th,e problem shall not be s~~-cre:at~d. WL ~~"~ .. ~..:...c. -t\-..
 
~""'~<"\.)_,,,-, 3:: i CM..-(,,-c...-~ ~()~U~~l:>'~ a.'I\.~ c "'"\~ w~_, ·~c '\.
 

'--t)-{"l>'oI e.... J:::~ ~I.A...'C''-\.' \ ~':::.) ~-- LL \ V"""~' C-"i cz.. -\\""'4.. '<'.Q..0 \-..\o':>! \-L:."--&..
a", '" 

7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would
 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or
 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. S\ CL v.. Q.._ <-~ ~~\ ~~~ i ...f.....r c v-..
 

a.,-\\~~6c~.c.[ ~:.~\\:L ~(,Q..-J~"'.;\ --\~ ;\C'o- --\'o~ ~,~ ~~ \-\. .
 
~ ,... " ~ '('"'f-,~-..c\'Y'V'v-""" \~ CL'("tLc- wo-\~ o..-'t:::u -~Q..c_U
 
l..-b~ ,a"\.A.(..~ v-> __ 

~ 0- c ~0- c" u l &. \1-0-\ l£.. 6'"'"-, \~ 

8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the
 
inequality inherent in the parti~ular property or mitigate the hardship'_. . , .1.
 

-:s::: -\ V:.... --\\~ ~~'C' \.~ "\~ ~\.\~w "-.\u,( 0...-"'- ~iI'-s." ALe... e_v---\.-cc.",c..~ ~~ 
\~ \ .~\l\" -\ \-'-I.~ ~~i ,~-\-'€..<,t..("' ev--.--\.<":'V'LL ....~ 

-"\ 'nJt.- ""Dv-.!iR-. \'-1 "-Q....~'-~ ,'::. ~c 

Q-v-\\.-",\~ \,~ ...\,~O ~~ -1-1..:> 6-~'~~6 \L>~ \-~I."'" 0... ~ ~a.< ()O-~{f-

9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant 

T-t V-i~\-\ u ~\.) ~<l-\"-\.L -\--1..> -\~I..'j ~'''' ~<""-\':) 

2 
06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 11 of 25



I hereby give permission for the members of the Zoning Board of Appeals and City Staff to 
access and inspect the property in question for the purpose of gathering information to make an 
informed decision on this variance request. 

Gd~Q}<S~ 
Property Owner Date 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE AND SUBMITTED TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR THEIR 
REVIEW. I REALIZE THAT ANY INFORMATION THAT I SUPPLY THAT IS NOT CORRECT 
COULD VOID ANY DECISION BY THE BOARD. I ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT IF THE 
VARIANCE IS GRANTED BY THE BOARD, THE WORK WITHIN THE REQUEST MUST BE 
CARRIED OUT WITHIN ONE YEAR OF THE PUBLIC HEARING OR THE VARIANCE 
BECOMES NULL AND VOID. 

Applicant Signature Date 

3 06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 12 of 25



Variance request for 77 Clinton St. 
non ~nti K~thlP R~klo"it<: 

We are seeking a variance to the setbacks for an attached garage and the maximum lot area. 

We purchased the home in 2002. Prior to the closing our attornev corresponded with Kathv Staton. then 
zoning administrator about our ability to build a garage at a future date. 

There are two purposes for seeking this variance. 

1.	 My wife is handicapped with arthritis. She is able to get around with some difficulty. Climbing 
stairs is still something she can do but navigating the winters is extremely challenging. We are 
hoping to build an attached garage with an entrance through the garage to the back of the house. 

2.	 The house is considered a manufactured home. It does not fu well aesthetically into the 
neighborhood. In addition to the attached garage we would like to make the following 
changes to the propertY to improve it's livability and make it look as little like a 
manufactured home as possible. This would be a big improvement for the neighborhood. 

•	 Remove the two cheap. unsightlY sets of trailer like stairs at the side of the house. This would 
improve the look and make the driveway access wider and easier to navigate. The side entrance 
to the house would be eliminated completely and replaced by the new rear interior entry. 

•	 The side stairs to the front of the house would be eliminated and new stairs built in a more 
traditional front entrance way. 

•	 We would remove all of the inexpensive siding and replace with high quality siding to improve 
the home. We would also replace all the windows for aesthetics and energy savings. The current 
windows and siding are extremely cheap and wasteful 

•	 We will also be replacing the current poor quality driveway with a totally new driveway. 

I have attached the following: 
•	 application for variance 
•	 two drawings showing the placement of the existing home and proposed additions to the 

property. 
•	 Pictures of the property 
. '""Q,...... A.~c;. ..~ ?-ec.,..... .. ~ -'u ( ~Q.~••
 

Thank you for your consideration
 

~~ S\~\;J.C\~ 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 13 of 25



-

- ---

... ~ dW ...., ." [ _ •• . -om ...... 

o· 

f' ,... :
: 

. 

•. 

~ 

.3' 

' .. p' .~" ,,- - '* .,..'8' . : . "";I'" " .. " 
__ .. IlI:. "''II!. , 

. ." 'i:.. ..",.. I -. 
. '.. ... - ~;,; .... 

\. ,. 'I" .#

ior--' ",*~IIIool." 
. ••• "'l p' 

.~ ., - ,,"' .,Jj ,.. 

// ~ .., ....... a 

~ ~1-5T···.··0··· /....•.••• ~••R/Y· - ~ 
-.(J //////_·o~= 13~.= .. F~>.AMEN ~~ gj
•....... u . / .."///"U) U - ..
0 ~.. . ../" t· '1.,< '\I 15" o' Ii 0'. .. r::". ..- S< H C --r: 0l- 'LI· 

-, /'1 ~\ ',,'VIZ 

_'. <?~..rc,...\-\ 

C~ ,,-(e.,'to~=$.lr:r\0~--I _.r~.~:;' LANDING 
. • ... .: ""' lilt 

~ 2 .:....-:.: .......~ ....".~ t
 5.'T·· E··.P··5 
~ u:::=. . "" ....t--. . 

.......... ,', ....'" "-:-..,."......,. ..J."1iI' :
 
. .,......"., , ~ AI'" ;_ . 

. ,. it ·: 

. ". . .,~; ;,: ~.~ -&- A··5·'·p.It.• A'.LT·"" ~: .. """. M 
.. ,....,.:: "" t.. . 

p.... ·5·O' :'.¢,>':- DRIVE 
. I 

. .....""...,... M=50.07' · '::-~. 

" 

=R·. -.'-_..-..-........C.O\lQ..(tl.& .....o .'. NOOD· 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 14 of 25

http:A��5�'�p.It.�
http:1-5T���.��0���/....�


I~ 'I' , ..~ 

, . M 

'E.~~<)/ 5;:1 
_ N\v..Cl(~"---=-

r6 

.- : 

\0' 

-N 
-..9 

~
,

, 
?

~'.' I
I 

t1 ~ 
\ .: 

~ 

;Ii,r r ..
___ '.'~. '.·..}~:;·,t ~ol-lj 

1--.... ,. '.'" """I'~::::'W'~ ~ , 
-----------1/- 'J.f :SL~ ... 

J'ii~"-- - .._-.-Jr

~. ' 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 15 of 25



~"%,n"""~fll~{r;;,.:r';ff'-' 
, DRIVER UCENSE 

J

R24f461 ll27 7ST'" ISS' 09-12-2011
 
DOB 104)1.1951 EXP~"lD-01.2015
 

I 
KATHIE ARAKLOVm;n CUHTON ST ',' '..__) 
SOUl1I HAllEN.:. -'1181
 

Sex F , ~ Hgt 506 "".>~es BRO
 
tic Type 0 Enil NONe-- ..
 

RestrictlllnS to:....a.,.
 
_ - -'~~l; 

~o.~ 
'. DD~!IOlI2993t43ll11 IIovlll-ZHllll EXPIRES 

10(1151 

-----"------------"--------) 

\0 0\ \l.o 
DAY YEAR 

'" 
j 

-- " 

I 

I 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 16 of 25



06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 17 of 25



06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 18 of 25



06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 19 of 25



06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 20 of 25



06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 21 of 25



Map Print Page 1 of 1 

2011 ORTHO AERIAL MAPS Pnnt This Page I Close 
Showing Parcel Lines and Labels 

2011 Digital Orthophotographs 

The original photographs displayed here were taken in the spring of 2011. The 'best resolution' of these images is 
0.5 feet per pixel. 

Digital ortho photography consists of images processed by computer to remove the distortions caused by tilt of the 
aircraft and topographic relief in the landscape. These images are property scaled and located in the state plane 
coordinate system (NAD83) thus giving them similar characteristics of a map. 

Copyright © 2001 Land Infonnation Access Association 

1_+4-..... //nrurur "hr.o.onvrnaps/rnapprint.htrn 

~i 60 US Feet! 

2011 Digital 
"" Orthophotograph 

II Municipal Name 
..... Municipal Border 

tJ. Railroads 

l-J Public Roads 

fJf/J; Property Lines 

• Subdivision Lines 

• Condominiums Lines 

5/17/2012
 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 22 of 25



STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE:  June 25, 2012 
ADDRESS:  77 Clinton Street 
ZONING DISTRICT:  R-1A Residential 
LOT DIMENSIONS:  50.07 x 119.90 
LOT AREA:  6004 square feet 
LOT COVERAGE:  25.9% current; 41% proposed 
REQUIRED SETBACKS:  Front – 15 feet; Rear – 25 feet; Side – 3 feet (15 total) 
EXISTING SETBACKS:  Front – 15 feet; Rear – 35 feet; Side – 3 feet / 8 feet (11 

total) 
PROPOSED SETBACKS:  Front – NC; Rear – 3’; Sides – NC 
VARIANCE REQUEST:  Don and Kathy Raklovits, 77 Clinton Street, request 
a variance from Article IV, Section 402 in order to attach a garage to the 
residence, resulting in nonconformance to the rear (north) setback requirements. 
The setback proposed will be three (3) feet from the north lot line. The ordinance 
requires attached garages be located no less than 25 feet from the rear lot line. 
The applicant is also requesting relief from the lot coverage requirement of 40 
percent. The addition will bring the lot coverage to 41 percent. The parcel 
number for the subject property is 80-53-184-012-00. 
 
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood.  
 The attached garage will not be out of character for the neighborhood in the 
respect that it is a residential use in a residential zone/neighborhood. Looking at 
the aerial photo of the area, it may be seen that a number of residences have 
detached garages close to the side and rear lot lines. A property to the east of the 
Raklovits’ appears to have an attached garage built on or near the side lot line. 
The property directly behind the Raklovits’ appears to have a detached accessory 
building on the property line. 
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
It is the intent of the R1A zoning district to preserve the character of the single-
family neighborhoods. The proposed structure is an addition to an existing 
residential accessory building and is compatible with the residential character. 
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property 
in question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to 
other properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a 
practical difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such 
as narrowness, shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to 
the intended use of the property. See Section 2204(2).  
The lot size and shape is not atypical for the neighborhood. While there are some 
larger lots, many are of similar size as the subject lot. Staff does not find 
exceptional or extraordinary conditions as far as lot size or configuration. 
 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 23 of 25



The reason for the variance request is related to the health of the wife of the 
owner. Kathie Raklovits has severe arthritis which inhibits her ability to move 
about, especially in inclement weather. The attached garage would help Mrs. 
Raklovits move from the house to the car. This situation is presented as the 
extraordinary circumstance as required. 
 
The Raklovits also would like to improve the appearance of the house while 
constructing the garage. While this is admirable, it is not related to the variance 
request nor is it a condition for granting a variance. 
 
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the 
same zoning district and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial 
return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 
There does not appear to be any financial motive for the improvements the 
applicant has requested. The health of Mrs. Raklovits is the primary reason for the 
request. If the applicant were asking to construct a detached garage, a variance 
would likely not be necessary. It is the attachment of the garage to the house that 
creates the problem.  
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or 
recurrent a nature as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general 
regulation for such conditions or situation. 
This does not appear to be a recurrent type of variance request in the city 
although you have heard similar requests in the past year. Staff does not 
recommend amending the zoning ordinance to permit a decrease in setback for 
principal structures in the R1A zoning district. It is more prudent to consider these 
requests as they arise. 
  
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of 
actions of the property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 
It could be concluded that the request is self-created given the typical size of the 
lot and the ability of the owner to construct a detached garage without a variance. 
The issue is the health of the owner’s wife and the need to accommodate her 
physical limitations. 
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density 
would unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted 
purpose, or would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. 
It may be concluded that compelling the applicant to construct a detached garage 
could render an unnecessary burden to his wife and her ability to navigate the 
walk from house to car. 
   
8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome 
the inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
Attaching the garage to the house could be done with less lot coverage than is 
proposed. The applicant is proposing additional construction to “square off” the 
complete structure as part of the overall structural improvements planned. The 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 24 of 25



addition, as presented, increases lot coverage from 26 percent to 41 percent. This 
is one percent over the maximum allowed.  
 
Staff contacted the city building inspector regarding the proximity of the proposed 
attached garage to the neighbor’s garage to the north. (It appears that the 
neighbor’s garage is located on the lot line between the two properties.) It was 
learned that any separation less than five (5) feet from the lot line will require that 
a one-hour fire rating wall be constructed on the north side of the proposed 
garage. The building inspector recommended reducing the depth of the proposed 
garage if possible for the safety of both properties. If the applicant reduces the 
depth of the proposed garage from 30 feet to 28 feet, a fire suppression wall will 
not be required and neither will a lot coverage variance.  If the applicant does not 
agree and the ZBA approves the variance anyway, it should be contingent on the 
fire marshal’s review and approval. 
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant. 
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicant. 

06-25-2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 25 of 25


	06-25-2012 ZBA Agenda
	04-23-2012 ZBA Minutes draft.pdf
	Minutes pg. 2
	Minutes pg. 3
	Minutes pg. 4
	Minutes pg. 5
	Minutes pg. 6
	Minutes pg. 7

	06-25-2012 ZBA Staff Reports
	77 Clinton Street Application
	Application pg. 2
	Application pg. 3
	Applicant Narrative
	Site Drawing
	House Plan
	Proof of Handicap Status
	Photo 1
	Photo 2
	Photo 3
	Photo 4
	Photo 5
	Aerial

	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT
	Findings pg. 2
	Findings pg. 3




